

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

MEETING OF THE AUDIT, STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

THURSDAY 21ST JANUARY 2021 AT 6.00 P.M.

VIRTUAL MEETING - TEAMS

MEMBERS: Councillors L. C. R. Mallett (Chairman), P. J. Whittaker (Vice-Chairman), S. J. Baxter, A. J. B. Beaumont, S. G. Hession, J. E. King, A. D. Kriss, C. J. Spencer, K. J. Van Der Plank and Cypher (Parish Councils' Representative)

<u>AGENDA</u>

- 1. Apologies for Absence and Named Substitutes
- 2. Declarations of Interest and Whipping Arrangements

To invite Councillors to declare any Disclosable Pecuniary interests or Other Disclosable Interests they may have in items on the agenda, and to confirm the nature of those interests.

- 3. To confirm the accuracy of the minutes of the Audit, Standards and Governance Committee meeting held on 24th November 2020 (Pages 1 - 10)
- 4. Standards Regime Monitoring Officers' Report (Pages 11 14)
- 5. Grant Thornton Interim Audit Findings Report

(Report to follow).

- 6. Internal Audit Monitoring Report (Pages 15 46)
- 7. Benefits and Compliance Update

- 1 -

(Report to follow).

- 8. Risk Register Update Verbal Update
- 9. Risk Champion Verbal Update Report (Councillor K. Van Der Plank)
- Audit, Standards and Governance Committee Work Programme (Pages 47 48)

K. DICKS Chief Executive

Parkside Market Street BROMSGROVE Worcestershire B61 8DA

13th January 2021

If you have any queries on this Agenda please contact Jo Gresham

Parkside, Market Street, Bromsgrove, B61 8DA Tel: (01527) 64252 (Extn.3031) e.mail: joanne.gresham@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk

GUIDANCE ON VIRTUAL MEETINGS

Due to the current Covid-19 pandemic Bromsgrove District Council will be holding this meeting in accordance with the relevant legislative arrangements for remote meetings of a local authority. For more information please refer to the Local Authorities and Police and Crime Panels (Coronavirus) (Flexibility of Local Authority and Police Crime Panels meetings) (England and Wales) Regulations 2020.

Please note that this is a public meeting conducted remotely by Skype conferencing between invited participants and live streamed for general access via the Council's YouTube channel.

You are able to access the livestream of the meeting from the Committee Pages of the website, alongside the agenda for the meeting.

Live Stream for Audit, Standards and Governance Committee Meeting - 21st January 2021

If you have any questions regarding the agenda or attached papers please do not hesitate to contact the officer named above.

Notes:

As referred to above, the virtual Skype meeting will be streamed live and accessible to view. Although this is a public meeting, there are circumstances when Council might have to move into closed session to consider exempt or confidential information. For agenda items that are exempt, the public are excluded and for any such items the live stream will be suspended and that part of the meeting will not be recorded.



INFORMATION FOR THE PUBLIC

Access to Information

The Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 widened the rights of press and public to attend Local Authority meetings and to see certain documents. Recently the Freedom of Information Act 2000 has further broadened these rights, and limited exemptions under the 1985 Act.

- You can attend all Council, Cabinet and Committee/Board meetings, except for any part of the meeting when the business would disclose confidential or "exempt" information.
- You can inspect agenda and public reports at least five days before the date of the meeting.
- You can inspect minutes of the Council, Cabinet and its Committees/Boards for up to six years following a meeting.
- You can have access, upon request, to the background papers on which reports are based for a period of up to six years from the date of the meeting. These are listed at the end of each report.
- An electronic register stating the names and addresses and electoral areas of all Councillors with details of the membership of all Committees etc. is available on our website.
- A reasonable number of copies of agendas and reports relating to items to be considered in public will be made available to the public attending meetings of the Council, Cabinet and its Committees/Boards.
- You have access to a list specifying those powers which the Council has delegated to its Officers indicating also the titles of the Officers concerned, as detailed in the Council's Constitution, Scheme of Delegation.

You can access the following documents:

- Meeting Agendas
- Meeting Minutes
- > The Council's Constitution

at <u>www.bromsgrove.gov.uk</u>

Audit, Standards and Governance Committee 24th November 2020

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

MEETING OF THE AUDIT, STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

24TH NOVEMBER 2020, AT 6.00 P.M.

PRESENT: Councillors L. C. R. Mallett (Chairman), P. J. Whittaker (Vice-Chairman), S. J. Baxter, A. J. B. Beaumont, J. E. King, A. D. Kriss and K. J. Van Der Plank

Observers: Mr. Jackson Murray, Mr. Neil A. Preece (Grant Thornton, Councillor G. Denaro and Councillor P. McDonald

Officers: Mr. K. Dicks, Mrs. S. Hanley, Mr. A. Bromage Mr C. Forrester, Ms. C. Flanagan, Ms. R. Pritchett, Ms. J. Bayley, and Mrs. J. Gresham

23/20 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND NAMED SUBSTITUTES

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor C. Spencer and Mr. J. Cypher.

24/20 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST AND WHIPPING ARRANGEMENTS

There were no declarations of interest nor of any whipping arrangements.

25/20 TO CONFIRM THE ACCURACY OF THE MINUTES OF THE AUDIT, STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON 10TH SEPTEMBER 2020

The minutes of the meeting of the Audit, Standards and Governance Committee held on 10th September 2020 were submitted.

<u>RESOLVED</u> that the minutes of the Audit, Standards and Governance Committee meeting held on 10th September 2020 be approved as a correct record.

26/20 STANDARDS REGIME - MONITORING OFFICERS' REPORT

The Principal Solicitor presented the report which covered activity since the last meeting. It was reported that any outstanding Parish Council complaints were being dealt with by the Monitoring Officer and details would be reported back in due course. Members were informed that all Committee meetings were currently being held remotely and that the legislation that was put in place at the beginning of lockdown in respect of this matter would remain until 7th May 2021. It was reported to Members that the Local Government Association (LGA), the Association of Lawyers in local government and the Association of Democratic Services Officers (ADSO) had collectively written to the government regarding the ability to hold remote meetings, not only until May 2021, but also to continue to hold some meetings remotely in the future. Members noted that there was the need for conducting meetings remotely due to the pandemic and associated lockdown. However, post-Covid, Members expressed hope that meetings would not all be carried out remotely.

Some Members expressed their frustration regarding the Tree Protection Orders (TPOs) discussions at the previous Constitution Working Group meeting, the length of time this had taken and that Members of the Planning Committee had not been invited to take part in the discussions. It was confirmed that the item in respect of TPOs would be considered at a full Council meeting in early 2021.

<u>RESOLVED</u> that the Monitoring Officer's Report be noted.

27/20 PROGRESS ON BEST PRACTICE RECOMMENDATIONS FOR AUDIT, STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEES

The Principal Solicitor presented the Progress on Best Practice Recommendations for Audit, Standards and Governance Committees report for Members' consideration and in doing so highlighted the following:

- The Best Practice Recommendations made by the Chairman of the Committee of Standards for Public Life (CSPL) in Appendix 1 ran in parallel with the review of the Code of Conduct. It was confirmed that the majority of the Best Practice Recommendations were already in place but that a proposed changed had been included in Appendix 2 - Arrangements for Managing Standards Complaints by the Council. If Members agreed with the proposed change then a response could be provided to the Chairman of the CPSL by the deadline of 30th November 2020.
- That Mr. J. Cypher, the Parish Councils' Representative on the Committee, had requested that a question regarding the dissemination of information in respect of the Model Code of

Audit, Standards and Governance Committee 24th November 2020

Conduct to Parish Councils be raised in his absence. The Principal Solicitor advised that it was too early to disseminate information to Parish Councils in respect of the Model Code of Conduct. Processing of the consultation responses was ongoing and certain recommendations of the Committee for Standards in Public life require legislative changes. Further reports would be brought to members as the development of the new code progressed and prior to the new national code being issued. Amendments might also be needed at a local level meaning the process might take some time to complete. Officers undertook to inform the Committee of any updates in respect of this at future meetings.

RECOMMENDED that

- a) that the Committee approve the amended arrangements for handling Member complaints; and
- b) the Council's response to the Chairman of the Committee of Standards for Public Life's recommendations be approved and returned to him before the deadline of 30th November 2020.

28/20 COVID-19 CIVIL CONTINGENCIES RESPONSE

The Chairman welcomed the North Worcestershire Civil Contingencies and Resilience Manager to the meeting. The update had been requested by Members at a previous meeting of the Committee in order to understand more fully the Council's response to the Covid-19 pandemic and associated lockdown.

Members were advised that a debrief exercise was carried out in respect the Council's response to Covid-19 at the end of the first national lockdown. It was explained that this kind of debrief was a statutory duty under the Civil Contingencies Act (2004). The response was provided to the Corporate Management Team (CMT) in August 2020. Eighteen recommendations had been made as a result of the debrief all of which had been accepted by the Chief Executive. All recommendations, except for one, were undertaken within six weeks. It was clarified that the outstanding recommendation was concerned with data sharing and would be ongoing and monitored closely. The Chairman queried whether the recommendation in respect of data sharing had affected the implementation of 'Track and Trace'. It was clarified to Members that this information was different from 'Track and Trace' and was part of a bigger piece of work concerning vulnerable people and the access and sharing

Audit, Standards and Governance Committee

of data and would be overseen by the Head of Community and Housing Services. The Deputy Chief Executive advised that door knocking had been carried out by trained officers to support the most vulnerable residents in the District when all other communication options had been investigated.

Members thanked officers for all of their hard work in unprecedented times and noted that they were encouraged by all of their work so far in response to the pandemic. There was a query in respect of future interrogation of the findings from the debrief. The North Worcestershire Civil Contingencies and Resilience Manager reported that there would be a future debrief, once the Covid-19 vaccination programme had taken place to capture all learning from the conclusion of the incident management. Members were advised that the Council was in a very strong position due to the Business Continuity Planning that had been undertaken during the pandemic.

The Chairman thanked the officers for their update and commented that he was pleased to see that the majority of the recommendations had been completed.

<u>RESOLVED</u> that the Covid-19 Civil Contingencies Response be noted.

29/20 PROGRESS AND SECTOR REPORT - GRANT THORNTON

The Engagement Lead, Grant Thornton presented the Grant Thornton Progress and Sector Report and in doing so highlighted the following to Members:

Sign off of the accounts had been delayed due to the challenges • faced by carrying out the audit remotely. Covid-19 had inevitably had an impact on the on the time taken to carry out the audit and it was estimated that an extra 25% more time had been needed to gather and process information. It was clarified that during previous audits the team from Grant Thornton where be able to sit next to the members of the Finance team to discuss findings and ensure robust reporting. It was confirmed to Members that the completion of the work was a priority, and were advised that the Chief Executive had provided additional resource to the Finance team to ensure that the remainder of the audit could be carried out efficiently and robustly. It was unclear what the impact of the delayed audit would have on fees charged for the audit but that any additional fees would be reported to Members in the Annual Audit Letter.

 The deadline for the Council's Annual Housing Benefit Subsidy claim certificate had been delayed by the Department of Work and Pensions (DWP) to 31st January 2021. The findings would be presented to the Committee once the work had been completed.

The Chairman asked the Chief Executive and Head of Finance and Customer Services if they would like to provide a further update on the Grant Thornton Progress and Sector Report and it was reiterated to Members that it had been a very challenging time for officers and the completion of the audit and sign off of the final accounts remained their top priority. It was confirmed that a lot of progress had been made in the last few weeks and that momentum was being maintained. Members agreed that these were unprecedented times and that strengthening the team seemed like a reasonable and satisfactory response.

Members questioned whether other councils had not met the deadline to provide their final accounts. The Engagement Lead for Grant Thornton provided assurance that there had been many examples where there had been delayed and that Bromsgrove District Council was certainly not on its own.

Councillor P. McDonald, who was in attendance as an observer, was invited by the Chairman to join the discussion. After detailed debate regarding the proportion of work that had been required to process accounts for Redditch Borough Council's, and whether this had impacted on the completion of the accounts for Bromsgrove District Council. He also expressed that he hoped that there would be no reputational damage for the Council due to the delay in providing the final accounts.

Some Members were concerned that the processing of Redditch's accounts had been more resource intensive. The Chief Executive explained that there was little that could be done to quantify whether this was the case as it was clear that there were other elements in play that had caused the delays in the preparation of the final accounts. He explained that what was clear was that resources had been dedicated where necessary and that the delays experienced by Bromsgrove District Council were a national issue.

The Chairman questioned whether there was any suggestion at this point in the audit Grant Thornton would be providing a qualified opinion and it was confirmed that, at this stage, there was no indication that a qualified opinion would be offered. At this point in the meeting there was a short presentation by the Head of Finance and Customer Services and a member of the external contractor team regarding the implementation of the Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) system. They provided some clarification the challenges that had been faced and the timelines for the project.

It was hoped that the system would be live by the end of January 2021, but it was key that the adequate testing was carried out in order to ensure the roll out of ERP was successful. Members agreed that this was the correct approach to implementation of the system to ensure it was fit for purpose and enabled officers to work in a more efficient way going forward.

RESOLVED that

the Grant Thornton Progress and Sector Report be noted.

30/20 INTERNAL AUDIT MONITORING REPORT

The Head of the Worcestershire Internal Audit Shared Service presented the Internal Audit – Monitoring Report that covered reporting as at the end of October 2020. He reported to Members that audits were continuing to progress and that 7 reviews were in the pipeline for Quarters 3 and 4.

Members were advised that since the last meeting of the Committee, Internal Audit had carried out a review on behalf of Worcestershire County Council (WCC) in respect of the Disabled Facilities Grants. This work was now completed and had been passed back to WCC.

In respect of the National Fraud Initiative, the Head of the Worcestershire Internal Audit Shared Service reported that good progress had been made and that no particular issues were foreseen ahead of the deadline at the end of December 2020.

An improvement plan was highlighted by the Head of the Worcestershire Internal Audit Shared Service for Members' attention which would be regularly brought to the Committee to ensure that the service continued to evolve. Members were advised that Covid-19 continued to impact on the audit process and had caused some delays due to working remotely. However, as was reported at the previous Committee meeting, the audit plan might need to be amended as necessary during the pandemic and

Audit, Standards and Governance Committee

associated lockdown. Members were reassured that the quality of audit work carried out had not been affected and remained high but that risks needed to be considered particularly in areas that had previous Limited Assurances and the potential of fraud such as Discretionary Business Grants.

Members queried whether the balance of audit areas was still sufficient given the unprecedented situation and whether further changes needed to be made in addition to those already made. However, they welcomed the flexibility of the plan and the targeting of areas where there were risks.

<u>RESOLVED</u> that the Internal Audit Monitoring Report be noted.

31/20 RISK MANAGEMENT GROUP MONITORING - VERBAL UPDATE

The Head of Finance and Customer Services provided a verbal update in respect of the Risk Management Group Monitoring and in doing so highlighted the following to Members:

- Business Continuity Plans were up to date
- Brexit was highlighted as a risk on the Risk Register due to the potential impact on businesses, supply chains and loss of income streams to the Council. Information had been included on the Council's website which provided updates to residents and the Corporate Management Team were regularly tracking the situation and any updates
- Recovery and Restoration plans were being implemented across the District
- The Joint Corporate Health, Safety and Welfare Committee met regularly and risk assessments were carried out to ensure that the Council was compliant with Health and Safety regulations
- The Budget setting process in the future would be more robust and transparent. The inclusion of business plans as part of the process would be introduced in order to indicate more clearly any pressures and savings in service areas
- Business Impact Analysis informed the Business Continuity Plans and the Head of Finance and Customer Services undertook to circulate these to the Committee for information

<u>RESOLVED</u> that the Risk Management Group Monitoring update be noted.

32/20 RISK REGISTER - COVID-19 AND BREXIT - VERBAL UPDATE

This item was discussed during the previous item.

33/20 RISK CHAMPION - VERBAL UPDATE REPORT (COUNCILLOR K. VAN DER PLANK)

Councillor K. Van der Plank, as the Committee's Risk Champion, presented her most recent report, following discussions with the Head of Business Transformation, Organisational Development and Digital Strategy. Councillor Van der Plank explained that her discussions had covered the following areas and she would provide information on each of these in turn:

- Training
- Well-Being

In respect of training, Councillor Van der Plank had made the following observations from her discussions with the Head of Business Transformation, Organisational Development and Digital Strategy:

- Staff were subject to an annual Performance & Development Review (PDR). PDRs were scheduled at different times in the year and were dependent on workload i.e. PDRs for the Finance team would not take place during the processing of year end accounts. Although there was an assumption that these were carried out and that a high level of completion was achieved, the levels were not currently monitored. It was suggested that this might be an area that could be measured on the corporate Dashboard in the future
- Various methods were used when training staff, such as . mentoring or coaching, and training needs were discussed and agreed at PDRs. Training courses were able to be booked via the HR21 system and there was mandatory training undertaken for all staff including General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR), Safeguarding and Health and Safety.
- Historically, Member training had been delivered face-to-face and some councillors had struggled to attend this training. It was suggested that if more mandatory training was available online then it might be easier for Members to participate. In respect of IT for Members, it was noted that perhaps more training was needed in this area in order to ensure that Members were able to get the most out of the systems used within the Council.
- It was reported that a new piece of training related to the Equalities Act 2010 had been introduced this year and had been

welcomed by staff. It was suggested that this training might be appropriate for Members to undertake in the future.

In respect of staff well-being, Councillor Van der Plank highlighted the following areas:

- There was extensive support available to staff during this unprecedented time including an employee support service provided by a private company, Occupational Health referrals, mental health first aiders and mental health IT training. In addition to this, Microsoft Team meetings had been implemented during lockdown to ensure regular contact with staff members and a staff survey and stress audit were to be carried out to measure the impact of the Covid-19 lockdown. The results of these surveys would be available in 2021.
- No reports of challenging behaviour had been made by Customer Service staff and members of the public had been supportive during this difficult time.

The Chairman thanked Councillor K. Van Der Plank for her comprehensive report.

<u>RESOLVED</u> that the Risk Champion update be noted.

34/20 AUDIT, STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME

The Democratic Services Officer undertook to update the work programme to ensure that all items were considered at the appropriate time and to provide an amended version at the next meeting of the Committee.

<u>RESOLVED</u> that the Committee work programme be noted.

The meeting closed at 8.18 p.m.

<u>Chairman</u>

This page is intentionally left blank

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

AUDIT, STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

21st January 2021

MONITORING OFFICER'S REPORT

Relevant Portfolio Holder	Councillor Geoff Denaro (for Governance)
Portfolio Holder consulted	No
Relevant Head of Service	Claire Felton, Head of Legal, Equalities and Democratic Services and Monitoring Officer
Wards affected	All Wards
Ward Councillor consulted	N/A

1. <u>SUMMARY OF PROPOSALS</u>

- 1.1 This report sets out the position in relation to key standards regime matters which are of relevance to the Audit, Standards and Governance Committee since the last report which was presented at the meeting of the Committee in November 2020.
- 1.2 It has been proposed that a report of this nature be presented to each meeting of the Committee to ensure that Members are kept updated with any relevant standards matters.
- 1.3 Any further updates arising after publication of this report, including any relevant standards issues raised by the Parish Councils' Representative(s), will be reported on orally by Officers/the Parish Representative(s) at the meeting.

2. <u>RECOMMENDATION</u>

That, subject to Members' comments, the Committee is asked to RESOLVE that the report be noted.

3. KEY ISSUES

Financial Implications

3.1 There are no financial implications arising out of this report.

Legal Implications

3.2 Chapter 7 of Part 1 of the Localism Act 2011 ('the Act') places a requirement on authorities to promote and maintain high standards of conduct by Members and co-opted (with voting rights) Members of an authority. The Act also requires the authority to have in place arrangements under which allegations that either a district or parish

21st January 2021

councillor has breached his or her Code of Conduct can be investigated, together with arrangements under which decisions on such allegations can be made.

Service / Operational Implications

Member Complaints

3.3 The Monitoring Officer is currently considering two complaints, one at District and one at Parish level.

The New Normal

- 3.4 Meetings continue to be held remotely in order to meet the requirements of the new legislation with all public meetings being live streamed to the Council's You Tube channel, and a link provided on the Council's website to access these. This allows the public to continue to see that Council business is carrying on and that decisions are being made in an appropriate manner.
- 3.5 There has been a change to the software used by staff and Members for the purpose of these remote meetings, as was suggested in the last update. Following a number of trial meetings prior to the Christmas break it has been agreed that with immediate effect, all public meetings will now be held through Microsoft Teams, and will continue to be streamed live for the public through the Council's You Tube channel as detailed above.
- 3.6 The legislation which was put in place at the beginning of lockdown remains in place until 7th May 2021, although as previously highlighted, it is anticipated that this will be reviewed prior to that date and remote meetings will continue well in to 2021.
- 3.7 The Constitution Review Working Group and Member Development Steering Group continue to meet on a regular basis and any relevant updates will be provided to this Committee in due course.

Customer / Equalities and Diversity Implications

3.8 There are no direct implications arising out of this report. Details of the Council's arrangements for managing standards complaints under the Localism Act 2011 are available on the Council's website and from the Monitoring Officer on request.

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

AUDIT, STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

21st January 2021

4. RISK MANAGEMENT

The main risks associated with the details included in this report are:

- Risk of challenge to Council decisions; and
- Risk of complaints about elected Members.

5. <u>APPENDICES</u>

No appendices

6. BACKGROUND PAPERS

Chapter 7 of the Localism Act 2011.

AUTHOR OF REPORT

Name: Claire Felton Email: <u>c.felton@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk</u> This page is intentionally left blank

AUDIT, STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

Date: 21st January 2021

THE INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT OF THE HEAD OF THE INTERNAL AUDIT SHARED SERVICE ~ WORCESTERSHIRE INTERNAL AUDIT SHARED SERVICE.

Relevant Portfolio Holder	Councillor Geoff Denaro		
Portfolio Holder Consulted	Yes		
Relevant Head of Service	Chris Forrester, Financial and Customer Services		
Ward(s) Affected	All Wards		
Ward Councillor(s) Consulted	No		
Key Decision / Non-Key Decision	Non–Key Decision		

1. <u>SUMMARY OF PROPOSALS</u>

- 1.1 To present:
 - the monitoring report of internal audit work for 2020/21.

2. <u>RECOMMENDATIONS</u>

2.1 **The Committee is asked to note the report.**

3. KEY ISSUES

Financial Implications

3.1 There are no direct financial implications arising out of this report.

Legal Implications

3.2 The Council is required under Regulation 6 of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2018 to "maintain in accordance with proper practices an adequate and effective system of internal audit of its accounting records and of its system of internal control".

Service / Operational Implications

- 3.3 The involvement of Members in progress monitoring is considered to be an important facet of good corporate governance, contributing to the internal control assurance given in the Council's Annual Governance Statement.
- 3.4 This section of the report provides commentary on Internal Audit's performance for the period 01st April 2020 to 31st December 2020 against the performance indicators agreed for the service.

AUDIT, STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE Date: 21st January 2021

3.5	Summary Dashboard:		
	Total reviews planned for 2020/21(o	riginally):13 (minimum)	
	Reviews finalised to date for 2020/2	1: 3 (including DFG's)	
	Assurance of 'moderate' or below:	2	
	Reviews currently awaiting final sign	off: 1	
	Reviews ongoing:	7	
	Reviews to be completed (Q4):	2	
	Number of 'High' Priority recommend	dations reported to date:	1
	Satisfied 'High' priority recommenda	tions to date:	0
	Productivity:	70% (against targeted 74%)	
	Overall plan delivery to date:	50% (against target >90%)	

Since the last sitting of the Committee one report has been completed and is waiting final management sign off.

Follow Up reports that have been finalised since the last Committee sitting are reported in Appendix 4.

All 'limited' assurance reviews go before CMT for full consideration.

3.6 <u>2020/21 AUDITS ONGOING AS AT 31st DECEMBER 2020</u>

One review was considered before CMT and is now awaiting management sign off:

• Use of Agency and Consultants

One review that has been finalised since the last Committee sitting is:

• Markets

Audits progressing through the testing stage included:

- Health and Safety
- Council Tax
- Benefits
- NNDR
- Debtors
- Creditors
- Treasury Management

The summary outcome of the above reviews will be reported to Committee in due course when they have been completed and management have confirmed an action plan.

A rolling testing programme on Debtors and Creditors has been continuing during quarters 2 and 3 inclusive. The rolling testing programme results will be amalgamated as at the end of quarter 3 and formal audit reports issued during quarter 4.

The 2020/21 plan reflects the delayed start and certain lesser risk reviews will need to be rolled to next years plan. Priority continues to be given to potentially higher risk

AUDIT, STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE Date: 21st January 2021

areas e.g. limited assurance audits. As we return to the new normal the impact of restrictions of the COVID-19 lockdown on the plan will be closely managed as the year progresses. The plan for 2020/21 has remained very flexible and the core financial areas of the business are currently being reviewed and reported on. With progress set to continue the Head of Internal Audit will consider the output to provide an overall opinion at year. Committee will continue to be regularly informed of developments throughout the year and any variations to the plan will be overseen by the Head of Financial and Customer Services and s151 Officer.

Critical review audits are designed to add value to an evolving Service area. Depending on the transformation that a Service is experiencing at the time of a scheduled review a decision is made in regard to the audit approach. Where there is significant change taking place due to transformation, restructuring, significant legislative updates or a comparison required a critical review approach will be used. In order to assist the service area to move forwards a number of challenge areas will be identified using audit review techniques. The percentage of critical reviews will be confirmed as part of the overall outturn figure for the audit programme. The outturn from the reviews will be reported in summary format as part of the regular reporting as indicated at 3.5 above.

Internal Audit are now considering any new processes emerging from the extraordinary working arrangements that have been necessary to continue to provide the Bromsgrove residents with services both now and throughout the pandemic. Plan flexibility will continue to be required to include and provide assurance on these emerging areas.

Follow up reviews are an integral part of the audit process. There is a rolling programme of review that is undertaken to ensure that there is progress with the implementation of the agreed action plans. The outcomes of the follow up reviews are reported in full so the general direction of travel and the risk exposure can be considered by Committee. An escalation process involving CMT and SMT is in place to ensure more effective use of resource in regard to follow up and reduce the number of revisits necessary to confirm the recommendations have been satisfied. There are no material exceptions to report at this time.

3.7 <u>AUDIT DAYS</u>

Appendix 1 shows that progress continues to be made towards delivering the Internal Audit Plan and achieving the revised targets set for the year. As at 31st December 2020 a total of 116 days had been delivered against a revised target of 188 days for 2020/21.

Appendix 2 shows the performance indicators for the service. These indicators were agreed by the Audit, Standards and Governance Committee on the 5th March 2020 for 2020/21.

Appendix 3 provides copies of the reports that have been completed and final reports issued since the last sitting of Committee.

Appendix 4 provides the Committee with 'Follow Up' reports that have been undertaken to monitor audit recommendation implementation progress by management.

Appendix 5 provides an overview of the Quality Assurance Improvement Plan.

AUDIT, STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE Date: 21st January 2021

3.8 OTHER KEY AUDIT WORK

Much internal audit work is carried out "behind the scenes" but is not always the subject of a formal report. Productive audit time is accurately recorded against the service or function as appropriate. Examples include:

- Governance for example assisting with the Annual Government Statement
- Risk management
- Transformation review providing support as a critical review
- Dissemination of information regarding potential fraud cases likely to affect the Council
- Drawing managers' attention to specific audit or risk issues
- Audit advice and commentary
- Internal audit recommendations: follow up review to analyse progress
- Day to day audit support and advice for example control implications, etc.
- Networking with audit colleagues in other Councils on professional points of practice
- National Fraud Initiative coordination of uploads.
- Investigations

3.9 National Fraud Initiative

NFI data set uploads have been ongoing from the beginning of October for Bromsgrove District Council in regard to the 2020/21 NFI national exercise. The first phase of data set uploading continued until the end of December 2020. Reasonable progress had been made in regard to the data set uploads with the majority completed before the deadline. As at the 31st December 2020 there remained outstanding data set uploads for the Creditors history and standing. For late uploads there is the potential for the NFI to apply a penalty fee. Creditors are currently in the process of completing a form to return to the NFI to advise them why the data sets are late. NFI will, on receipt of the form, decide whether there is just cause to waive the penalty fee. WIASS will continue to provide advice and assistance in regard to the process.

3.10 Monitoring

To ensure the ongoing delivery of the 2020/21 plan and any revision required there is close and continual monitoring of the plan delivery, forecasted requirements of resource -v – actual delivery, and where necessary, additional resource will be secured to assist with the overall Service demands. The Head of Internal Audit Shared Service remains confident his team will be able to provide the required coverage for the year over the authority's core financial systems, as well as the revised plan for other systems which have been deemed to be 'high' and 'medium' risk. Due to changing circumstances and the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic a variation in the plan has been necessary. This has been agreed on a risk priority basis with the s151 Officer as the year has progressed. With the adjustments to the plan there will remain reasonable audit coverage for 2020/21.

Date: 21st January 2021

3.11 Quality Assurance Improvement Plan

3.12 WIASS delivers the audit programme in conformance with the International Standards for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing (ISPPIA) as published by the Institute of Internal Auditors. A self assessment took place in August 2020 to identify potential areas for improvement and a programme of improvement was agreed before the Client Officer Group in September 2020. Action to date is reported for information at Appendix 5.

3.13 <u>Customer / Equalities and Diversity Implications</u>

There are no implications arising out of this report.

- 3.14 WIASS is committed to providing an audit function which conforms to the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (as amended). WIASS recognise there are other review functions providing other sources of assurance (both internally and externally) over aspects of the Council's operations. Where possible we will seek to place reliance on such work thus reducing the internal audit coverage as required.
- 3.15 WIASS confirms it acts independently in its role and provision of internal audit.

4. RISK MANAGEMENT

The main risks associated with the details included in this report are:

- failure to complete the planned programme of audit work for the financial year; and,
- the continuous provision of an internal audit service is not maintained.

5. <u>APPENDICES</u>

Appendix	1 ~ Internal Audit Plan delivery 2020/21
Appendix	2 ~ Plan position and key performance indicators 2020/21
Appendix	3 ~ Finalised audit reports including definitions
Appendix	4 ~ Finalised 'follow-up' reports.
Appendix	5 ~ Quality Assurance Improvement Plan

6. BACKGROUND PAPERS

Individual internal audit reports are held by Internal Audit.

7. <u>KEY</u>

N/a

AUDIT, STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

Date: 21st January 2021

AUTHOR OF REPORT

Name:Andy Bromage
Head of Internal Audit Shared Service,
Worcestershire Internal Audit Shared ServiceTel:01905 722051E Mail:andy.bromage@worcester.gov.uk

AUDIT, STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

Date: 21st January 2021

APPENDIX 1

Delivery against Internal Audit Plan for 2020/2	21
1 st April 2020 to 31 st December 2020	

Audit Area Core Financial Systems (see note 1)	Original 2020/21 Total Planned Days 60	Forecasted days to the 31 st March 2021 60	Actual Days Used to the 31st December 2020 42
Corporate Audits	66	*36	31
Other Systems Audits (see note 2) SUB TOTAL	68 194	*56 152	22 95
Audit Management Meetings	15	15	11
Corporate Meetings / Reading	5	5	5
Annual Plans, Reports and Committee Support	16	16	5
Other chargeable (see note 3)			
SUB TOTAL	36	36	21
TOTAL	230	188	116

Notes:

Audit days used are rounded to the nearest whole.

Note 1: Core Financial Systems are audited predominantly in quarters 3 and 4 in order to maximise the assurance provided for Annual Governance Statement and Statement of Accounts but not interfere with year end. A rolling programme has also been introduced for Debtors and Creditors to maximise coverage and sample size. The results will be reported during Q4.

Note 2: A number of the budgets in this section are 'on demand' (e.g. consultancy, investigations) so the demand can fluctuate throughout the quarters.

Note 3: 'Other chargeable' days equate to times where there has been, for example, significant disruption to the IT provision resulting in lost productivity.

* Where the forecasted days are less than the planned days for the year this reflects the adjustments that have been made to the plan during the year.

AUDIT, STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

Date: 21st January 2021

APPENDIX 2

Audit Plan Position as at the 31st December 2020

Audit Area	Planned days 2020/21	Proposed Review	Current Position a indicative delivery		Assurance
Accountancy & Finance Systems	•	L			
Debtors	9	Full	Testing underway	Q3/4	
Main Ledger/Budget monitoring/bank rec	10	Full	To commence	Q4	
Creditors	9	Full	Testing underway	Q3/4	
Treasury Management	6	Full	Testing underway	Q3	
Council Tax	8	Full	Testing underway	Q3/4	
Benefits	10	Full	Testing underway	Q3/4	
NNDR	8	Full	Testing underway	Q3/4	
SUB TOTAL	60				
		Corporate			
IT	8	Full	To commence 21/22	Q4	
Risk Management	6	Critical Friend Support	To commence	Q4	
Health and Safety	7	Limited Focus	Testing underway	Q1/ 2	
Procurement	8	Full	To commence 21/22	Q4	
GDPR	8	Limited Focus	To commence 21/22	Q4	
Orb	9	Full	Finalised	Q1	Moderate
Use of Agency & Consultants	9	Critical Friend	Draft Report - Awaiting Mngt Response	Q2	
Projects	11	Critical Friend	To commence 21/22	Q4	
SUB TOTAL	66				
	System / M	anagement Arr	angements	1	
Refuse Service Scalability	6	Limited Scope	To commence 21/22	Q4	
Markets	10	Limited Scope	Finalised	Q2	Moderate
Worcester Regulatory Services	10	Limited Scope	To commence 21/22	Q4	
Advisory and Consultancy #	10	Pull Down Budget	Q1 – Q4		N/a
Fraud and Investigations inc. NFI	10	Pull Down Budget	Q1 – Q4		N/a
Completion of prior years work	8	Pull Down Budget	Q1 – Q4		N/a
Report follow up	10	Pull Down Budget	Q1 – Q4		N/a
Statement of Internal Control	4	Pull Down Budget	Q1 – Q4		N/a
SUB TOTAL	68				

Date: 21st January 2021

		General		
Audit Management Meetings	15	Pull Down Budget	Q1 – Q4	N/a
Corporate Meetings/Reading	5	Pull Down Budget	Q1 – Q4	N/a
Reports, Annual Plans and Committee Support	16	Pull Down Budget	Q1 – Q4	N/a
SUB TOTAL	36			
PLAN TOTAL	230			

Performance against Key Performance Indicators 2020-2021

The success or otherwise of the Internal Audit Shared Service will be measured against some of the following key performance indicators for 2020/21. Other key performance indicators link to overall governance requirements of Bromsgrove District Council e.g. KPI 4. The position will be reported on a cumulative basis throughout the year.

	КРІ	Trend/Target requirement	2020/21 Position (as at 31 st December 2020)	Trend Since last Reporting	Frequency of Reporting
		Operationa	al	1	
1	No. of audits achieved during the year	Per target	Target = Minimum 13 Delivered = 3 (1@ Sign off)	î	When Audit Committee convene
2	Percentage of Plan delivered	>90% of agreed annual plan	50%	ſ	When Audit Committee convene
3	Service productivity	Positive direction year on year (Annual target 74%)	70% (Q2 average 63%) (Q1 average 50%)	Î	When Audit Committee convene
		Monitoring & Gov	ernance	I	
4	No. of 'high' priority recommendations	Downward (minimal)	1 (2019/20 = 9)	Î	When Audit Committee convene
5	No. of moderate or below assurances	Downward (minimal)	2 (2019/20 = 7)	ſ	When Audit Committee convene
6	'Follow Up' results	Management action plan implementation date exceeded (nil)	Nil to report	⇔	When Audit Committee convene
	1	Customer Satisf	action	1	
7	No. of customers who assess the service as 'excellent'	Upward(increasing)	Nil returns to date	⇔	When Audit Committee convene

2020/21 Audit Reports.

Worcestershire Internal Audit Shared Service



Final Internal Audit Report

Bromsgrove Market 2020-21

Date 24th November 2020

Distribution:

- To: Business Development Manager (Leisure and Cultural Services Market Manager
- CC: Head of Legal, Democratic and Property Services Chief Executive Deputy Chief Executive Head of Finance and Customer Service (S151 Officer)

Page 24

APPENDIX 3

Contents

1.	Introduction	11
2.	Audit Scope and objective	12
	Audit Opinion and Executive Summary	
	Detailed Findings and Recommendations	
	ependence and Ethics:	
	' PENDIX A	
	PENDIX B	

1. Introduction

- 1.1. The audit of the Bromsgrove Market was carried out in accordance with the Worcestershire Internal Audit Shared Service Audit Plan Bromsgrove District Council for 2020/21 as approved at the Audit, Standards and Governance Committee on 5th March 2020. The audit was a risk-based systems audit of the Bromsgrove Market as operated by Bromsgrove District Council.
- 1.2. There was one entry on the Corporate Risk Register relevant to this review.
 - COR 9 Non Compliance with Health and Safety Legislation.
- 1.3. There were two entries on the Service Risk Register relevant to this review.
 - L&C2 Fail to ensure the health & safety of the public/staff & visitors using services (meeting regulatory requirements)
 - L&C5 Fail to ensure that the current buildings & facilities remain fit for purpose now and for the future.

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

AUDIT, STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

- 1.4 This review links directly to the Bromsgrove District Council Plan 2019-23. Purpose Run and grow a successful business. Priority Economic development and regeneration.
- 1.5 This is an area that handles cash so is open to fraud in relation to theft or loss of income through failure to charge a stall holder correctly or from retention of income that should be handed over to the Council.

2. Audit Scope and objective

- 2.1 To provide assurance that:
 - Changes to procedures, including the raising and collection of tolls minimise the risks of Covid-19 to staff, Market Traders and the public
 - Equipment used by the Market Traders is fit for purpose.
- 2.2 Scope of the Audit:
 - Policy and procedures in relation to the handling and banking of cash during the coronavirus pandemic.
 - Reconciliation of the cash collected.
 - Protection for staff and the public during the coronavirus pandemic.
 - Condition of the equipment needed for the Bromsgrove Market.
 - Actions outstanding from the previous audit.
- 2.3 The review covered the period from 1st April 2020 to the date of the audit.
- 2.4. The review did not cover:
 - Stall pricing and value for money.
 - Licencing
 - Booking of Stalls
 - A full health and safety audit
 - Traders Incentive scheme

Page 26

3. Audit Opinion and Executive Summary

- 3.1. From the audit work carried out we have given an opinion of **moderate assurance** over the control environment in this area. The level of assurance has been calculated using a methodology that is applied to all Worcestershire Internal Audit Shared Service audits and has been defined in the "Definition of Audit Opinion Levels of Assurance" table in Appendix A. However, it should be noted that statements of assurance levels are based on information provided at the time of the audit.
- 3.2. We have given an opinion of **moderate assurance** in this area because there is a sound system of control in place but that some of the expected controls are not in place and / or are not operating effectively therefore assurance can only be given over the effectiveness of controls within some areas of the system.
- 3.3. The review found the following areas of the system were working well:
 - Market Managers knowledge of operating a market and drive to develop the Bromsgrove Market.
- 3.4. The review found the following areas of the system where controls could be strengthened:

	Priority (see Appendix B)	Section 4 Recommendation number
Follow Up from 2019/20 Audit	Medium	1
New Matters Arising		
Equipment	High	2
Procedures	Medium	3
COVID-19	Medium	4
Cash Collection and reconciliation	Medium	5

4. Detailed Findings and Recommendations

The issues identified during the audit have been set out in the table below along with the related risks, recommendations, management responses and action plan. The issues identified have been prioritised according to their significance / severity. The definitions for high, medium and low priority are set out in the "Definition of Priority of Recommendations" table in Appendix B.

		Finding	Risk	Recommendation	Management responses and actions
Issues b	brought forw	ard from previous audit			
1	Medium	Actions from 2019/20 Audit Policy and Procedures – Cash Handling/Financial Procedures Insufficient evidence has been provided to satisfy that the action relating to the Policy and Procedures – Cash Handling/Financial Procedures has been fully completed and testing has identified some variations in the process.	Potential for fraud, reputational damage and financial loss if cash is not kept secure.		Responsible Manager: Business Development Manager/Market Manager Action: Covid Cash handling procedures signed off by H&S Officer completed Market regulations updated by Market Manager - completed Market Manager or Senior Market Operative count market rent cash in the secure town centre toilet office – combination access number given to both staff (Changing places facility is kept for high dependency users only) Research is being undertaken into devices that will take payments by electronic means to remove all and any of the risk associated with cash collections, however this may not be viable.

Now m	natters arising				traders on the High Street each market day. The Cleansing operatives will carry out this procedure and feed into the Facilities Team Leader who will report figures weekly to the Business Support Team (Completed in October 2020) Implementation Date: 30 th November 2020
2		Equipment			Posponsible Manager:
2	High	Equipment			Responsible Manager: Market Manager
		There was a recent trader that	Potential for reputational damage	Identify Gazebo covers that are	market manager
		suffered loss to his stock due to the	and compensation as a result of	not fit for purpose and avoid	Action:
		gazebo leaking. The trader was	damage to traders' stock.	using until the replacements are	New gazebos have been delivered
		compensated by non-charge of rent		received.	and are now in place
		for one trading day. However, there is	Potential for reputational damage		
		no evidence of the value of the stock	and loss of revenue to both	A policy needs to be in place as	All gazebos are numbered, and
		lost. New covers have been ordered and are waiting delivery. (Estimated	Council and Traders should the Gazebo not be fit for purpose or	to how the Council will deal with claims to loss of stock due to	inspections carried out daily by the team - should any need repair -
		delivery date 24 th October 2020).	cause injury.	the fitness of the council	then the gazebo number will be
				equipment	reported and placed on the
		There is currently no regular	Potential for reputational		maintenance file and the gazebo
		maintenance plan in place for the	damage, compensation and risk	•	removed for repair (other gazebos
		gazebos and any repairs needed are	of harm to traders should the	gazebo frames should be	available until repair is ready)
		carried out as and when needed.	traders suffer injury as a result of	checked to ensure they remain	C monthly namely frame increation
		There are some gazebos where the frame is bowing.	the electrics.	fit for purpose and how faults are reported to ensure that no	6 monthly gazebo frame inspection to be carried out by Market Manager
		frame is bowing.		injury is caused.	(This has now been placed in the
		As a result of lockdown during the			Market Managers and Business
		Coronavirus pandemic no work has		A decision should be made by	Development Manager's outlook
		been undertaken on the Town		management as to whether to	calendar for every March &
		Centre/Market electrics. The County		allow the electric points to be	September)
		Council have been contacted and a		used in wet weather and this	
		date is a waited for the works to take		needs to be risk assessed until	Market Manager has emailed the
		place.		the changes are put in place.	Insurance officer and will seek
				The qualified electricians report	advice relating to any damage of

Agenda Item 6

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

AUDIT, STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

		There were a couple of other hazards		should provide a better	trader's goods and incorporate into
		identified during the visit to the		understanding of the overall risk	the market policy and re distribute
		market. For example, a cane		which should be fed into a risk	as a market regulation amendment
		protruding out of the top of one		assessment and the service risk	to all traders
		gazebo and an electric cable above		register.	
		head height which was trailing through			The council's electrical contractors
		a tree which were reported to the		The Market Manager should	have inspected the site and
		Market Manager.		assess the market for hazards	remedial work has been completed
		Market Manager.		and mitigate any risk and	3 power points in the town have
				discuss any issues with the	been disconnected from further use
				5	and made safe – all others have
				management team and health	
				and safety officer.	been approved for use. New power
					cables are being purchased through
					the electrical contractor for each
					market position. New connections
					above ground are being discussed
					between County and District
					Market Manager or Senior Market
					Operative will complete daily H&S
					inspections during each market day
					Implementation Date: 31 st
					December 20
3	Medium	Procedures			Responsible Manager:
					Market Manager/Business
		The audit identified that there were	Potential for reputational damage	Ensure that the information	Development Manager/H&S Officer
		inconsistencies (such as the wearing	and financial loss by way of	within policy, procedures and	
		of gloves when collecting money from	compensation should an	risk assessments are consistent	Action:
		the traders ,the locations for counting	employee injure themself at	and evidence of staff training is	Market Manager/Business
		the money and responsibility for	work.	retained.	Development Manager /Health
		putting up social distancing signage)			&Safety Officer have completed an
		between the written procedures and	Potential for reputational damage	Review procedures to make	observation training session with all
		risk assessments regarding the	should there be a challenge as to	sure they provide the necessary	the market operative team to review
		process for cash handling and setting	the lack of Social Distancing	controls but are pragmatic and	the installation set up and take
		up of the stalls and actual actions	Signage due to it being solely the	proportional for the nature of the	down - all have been approved by
		taking place.	responsibility of the Traders to	service and reflect corporate	H&SO.
			display signage.	guidelines regarding the	
		There is no recorded evidence that	alleria, olginagoi	pandemic.	Staff have been sent an instruction
L				panaomio.	

		staff have read the procedures/risk			video from the manufacturer and
		assessments or received training.		Decide who is responsible for	have now all viewed.
				ensuring that there is visible	
		There is no evidence of staff having		signage re. social distancing	Manual handling training is still
		been trained on the procedure on how		within the Market area of the	being requested from Training and
		to erect and dismantling the gazebos		high street.	Office Development officer, however
		/tables, or, that they have received			due to COVID this is not possible at
		manual handling training.			this time. Market Manager will book
					as soon as COVID-19 restrictions
		Actions are being put in place to			lifted
		address the above.			
					Policies and Documents are
					currently being checked for
					consistency by the Market Manager
					,,, ,
					New Town Centre Manager now
					appointed to review the town centre
					signage
					5 5
					Implementation Date: 31 st
					December 2020
4	Medium	COVID – 19			Responsible Manager:
					Business Development Manager
		Worcestershire County Council	Potential for reputational damage	Identify who the replacement	/Market Manager
		advised that no paint could be	should there be a challenge as to	Town Centre Manager is within	3
		applied, markings or adhesive tape to	how the council are promoting	Wyre Forest District Council and	Action:
		the high street paving as this may	and monitoring social distancing	if they will still be leading on the	As above – new Town Centre
		have a detrimental effect when trying	within the market area of the high	message around social	Manager now in place
		to remove it later. The District was	street.	distancing.	0
		advised to place signs reminding			Inspection of trader's stalls and
		people of social distancing.	Should a trader not be compliant	Review current social distancing	display of social distancing posters
		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	with the preventative measures	signage within the market area	carried out each morning by Market
		The audit identified that the signs	this could cause reputational	of the high street and agree	Manager or Senior Market
		produced by Bromsgrove District	damage by association to the	where it will be displayed, the	Operative- all traders have been
		Council for the stalls are not always	Council through negative public	actual signage to be used and	updated on the need to display their
		being displayed by all traders. Those	relations.	who is responsible for ensuring	signage as part of their Terms &
		signs that are displayed are small and		it remains visible.	Conditions.
1 F					
		not clearly visible. Larger signs are			

AUDIT, STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

Page 32

r			l .	Γ	
					Implementation Date: 31 st January 2021
5	Medium	Cash Collection and Reconciliation			Responsible Manager:
					Business Development Manager
		The Market was closed due to the Coronavirus pandemic lockdown from March until June 2020. To encourage the reopening of the market following the lockdown, a period of free rent followed by a percentage reduction was offered to traders during the months of July and August. The full market stall rental was charged from the 1 st September.	Potential for unrecognised fraud/theft if a full reconciliation is not carried out and a there is lack of transparency if incorrect or unapproved charges are being levied against Market Traders.	Review the reconciliation process to ensure base data is used i.e. approved amounts – v- number of stalls let on a given day equals expected receipted income. Ad hoc visits to the market to count the number of stalls should be undertaken so this can be checked against the	Action: New procedure now in place – cleansing team will count the number of traders each market day (they work onsite 7 days per week so no additional issues) this will be fed into the Business Support team weekly who reconcile the numbers against the receipts for each day
		From the period 1st Sept 2020 there has been a net loss of £147 in under collection of fees. This has not been due to fraud. Since this has been highlighted to management, the cause has been identified and actions have been put in place to ensure the correct amount will be charged from the 1st October 2020.		spreadsheet and the money collected. Liaise with finance to ensure checks are in place to ensure the money banked has been paid into the Council bank account and reflects the true overall amount required/expected.	An income analysis sheet is also sent to finance so they can match the market rents with the banking system – this also breaks down the amounts to differing cost centres. Reconciling process now includes the current fees and charges spreadsheet as a cross check for
		There have been a few discrepancies between the spreadsheet and receipts issued to the traders, usually for amounts less than £1 that have been picked up during monitoring and have subsequently been corrected or clarification has been requested to understand the reason for the discrepancy.			rents being charged. Will ask the appropriate contact in finance to send the Business Support team the weekly market banking figures – the Business Support team will then check the banked income against the receipts.
		Although reconciliation is carried out against receipts and income/ and			ImplementationDate:30thNovember 202030th

spreadsheet, there needs to be further		
processes in place to ensure a full		
reconciliation process is in place.		

5. Independence and Ethics:

- WIASS confirms that in relation to this review there were no significant facts or matters that impacted on our independence as Internal Auditors that we are required to report.
- WIASS conforms to the Institute of Internal Auditors Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (as amended) and confirms that we are independent and are able to express an objective opinion in relation to this review.
- WIASS confirm that policies and procedures have been implemented in order to meet the IIA Ethical Standards.
- Prior to and at the time of the audit no non-audit or audit related services have been undertaken for the Council within this area of review.

Head of Internal Audit Shared Services

Appendices A & B are indicated below and are applied to all reports. To save duplication these have been produced once, listed below for information.

APPENDIX A

Definition of Audit Opinion Levels of Assurance

Opinion	Definition
Full	The system of internal control meets the organisation's objectives; all of the expected system controls tested are in place and are operating effectively.
Assurance	No specific follow up review will be undertaken; follow up will be undertaken as part of the next planned review of the system.
Significant	There is a generally sound system of internal control in place designed to meet the organisation's objectives. However isolated weaknesses in the design of controls or inconsistent application of controls in a small number of areas put the achievement of a limited number of system objectives at risk.
Assurance	Follow up of medium priority recommendations only will be undertaken after 6 months; follow up of low priority recommendations will be undertaken as part of the next planned review of the system.
Moderate	The system of control is generally sound however some of the expected controls are not in place and / or are not operating effectively therefore increasing the risk that the system will not meet it's objectives. Assurance can only be given over the effectiveness of controls within some areas of the system.
Assurance	Follow up of high and medium priority recommendations only will be undertaken after 3 to 6 months; follow up of low priority recommendations will be undertaken as part of the next planned review of the system.
Limited	Weaknesses in the design and / or inconsistent application of controls put the achievement of the organisation's objectives at risk in many of the areas reviewed. Assurance is limited to the few areas of the system where controls are in place and are operating effectively.
Assurance	Follow up of high and medium priority recommendations only will be undertaken after 3 months; follow up of low priority recommendations will be undertaken as part of the next planned review of the system.
No	No assurance can be given on the system of internal control as significant weaknesses in the design and / or operation of key controls could result or have resulted in failure to achieve the organisation's objectives in the area reviewed.
Assurance	Follow up of high and medium priority recommendations only will be undertaken after 3 months; follow up of low priority recommendations will be undertaken as part of the next planned review of the system.

APPENDIX B

Definition of Priority of Recommendations

Priority	Definition
н	Control weakness that has or is likely to have a significant impact upon the achievement of key system, function or process objectives.
	Immediate implementation of the agreed recommendation is essential in order to provide satisfactory control of the serious risk(s) the system is exposed to.
М	Control weakness that has or is likely to have a medium impact upon the achievement of key system, function or process objectives.
	Implementation of the agreed recommendation within 3 to 6 months is important in order to provide satisfactory control of the risk(s) the system is exposed to.
L	Control weakness that has a low impact upon the achievement of key system, function or process objectives.
	Implementation of the agreed recommendation is desirable as it will improve overall control within the system.

Appendix 4

FOLLOW-UP REPORTS:

Worcestershire Internal Audit Shared Service



Compliments and Complaints 2019/20

1st Follow-up Report - 19th October 2020

Distribution:

- To: Head of Finance and interim Section 151 Officer Assistant Customer Support Manager
- CC: Chief Executive

Contents

Section A - Justification of Audit Follow-up Approach	24
Section B – Conclusion	
Section C – Current Postion	
APPENDIX A	
APPENDIX B	

Section A - Justification of Audit Follow-up Approach

The date of the final audit Report was 06/12/2019 and is being followed up because:

- 1 'high' and 3 'medium' priority recommendations were made: and
- At least six/three months have passed since the previous follow-up.

The following audit approach has therefore been applied:

- 1. The 1 'high' and 3 'medium' priority recommendations have been updated with the current position. (Please see Section C)
- 2. Where required recommendations against weaknesses in key controls have been tested substantively/ evidenced.

AUDIT, STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

Section B - Conclusion - Current Position statement

The original audit report gave Moderate Assurance over the control environment and this was the 1st follow-up.

The follow-up has found that out of the 1 'high' priority and 3 'medium' priority recommendations detailed in the table in Section C; The 1 'high' priority recommendation has been partially implemented, 1 of the 'medium' priority recommendations has been implemented, whilst the remaining 2 'medium' priority recommendations have not yet been implemented.

Internal Audit are satisfied that Management have taken action in relation to the one 'high priority' recommendation as although at this point in time it is only partially implemented the actions taken so far have reduced the risk to the Council.

In relation to the 'medium' priority recommendations, Internal Audit are also satisfied that management have taken action on one of the three medium priority recommendations and that it has been implemented and therefore the risk to the Council has been mitigated.

In relation to the two remaining 'medium' priority recommendations that have not been implemented; there has been a change in the direction of how some of the controls are going to be implemented and after further review the Council is not facing any additional risk from its non implementation.

As not all recommendations have been fully implemented a further follow up will take place in six months time.

This follow up was undertaken during the month of October 2020.

Section C – Current Position – (please see Appendix 3 for definition of priorities)

Ref./ Priority	Recommendation	Management Response and Action Plan	<u>1st Follow up</u> Position as at 16 th October 2020
1 High	Complaints Recording Management System Issues The review to consider the potential for development of the system to improve the council's way of providing services and for	Responsible Manager: ICT Operations Manager Implementation date: Quarter 1 2020.	 Partially Implemented 1) The first management response action point has been implemented as there is now a clear audit trail within the compliments and
	the potential to escalate reminder emails if complaints remain open for longer than a set number of days. If the system proves to be not fit for	1) We would like a full audit trail of the system. Planned specification to be completed by February 2020 to be implemented in quarter 1 2020.	 complaints system. 2) The second point in the management response has not yet been completed as there is a requirement to still update the active directory and investigate if it is
	purpose to consider alternative options that will best fit the Council's requirements in relation to the tracking and monitoring of complaints.	2) We would like the overdue complaints to be escalated further. There is project to update Active Directory. Once completed in February we will look to investigate if this is sufficient to use to escalate.	 possible for the system to allow open tickets to be escalated further. It was noted within the follow up meeting that if this is not possible the service would accept the risk. 3) The planned specification for 2nd stage
	The system requires a 2 nd stage complaint identification tag to ensure all complaints are dealt with appropriately and provide an opportunity to identify potential service development is maximised.	 3) 2nd stage can be developed so calls can be manually moved into this area. Planned specification to be completed by February 2020 to be implemented in quarter 1 2020. 4) Planned specification to be completed by February 2020 to be implemented in guarter 1 2020. 	 complaints to be developed within the system has been developed and implemented. 4) Planned specification was agreed and ICT was tested.
	To introduce a true audit trail and back-up process within the system so that if a record is deleted by mistake, it can be identified and reinstated.	2020 to be implemented in quarter 1 2020.	 Active directory – taken the hit 1 off - the coff, project wont start. Different coding, would be a huge piece of work and decision on that.

	Recommendation	Management Response and Action Plan	
Phoney			
Ref./ Priority 2 Medium	Recommendation Complaints Process To understand the reason why not all compliments and complaints are logged through the current system and then to evaluate the current system used for the recording of compliments and complaints and review if it is fit for purpose.	Management Response and Action Plan Responsible Manager: Assistant Customer Support Manager Implementation date: April 2020 (depending on development) Complaints Recording Management System 1) The single example provided related to Leisure who stated in their response (from a 4 th tier manager) that they know that they need to report it on the complaints system and state that they 'are not great at placing them onto the corporate system but resolve it there and then, timing and workload sometimes overtakes'. There was also a comment from the auditor that other services also said this but no evidence was obtained. Comms will go out to staff to ensure that compliments and complaints are recorded on the system	 1st Follow up Position as at 16th October 2020 Implemented The review found that that out of the management responses and action plan, both required actions have been implemented as: - Communication was issued in January 2020 and since that time, during a management forum meeting, the assistant customer support manager made all managers aware that they need to utilise the compliments and complaints system. In addition to this another communication will be issued once COVID-19 has calmed down as resources are required elsewhere at the time of the review. User access has been reviewed and updated. There are now 3 levels of access on the compliments and complaints system which consist of: -
		 2) User Access rights will be reviewed as part of the 2020 implementation. There are users who have left still on the system however they do not have cases allocated to them and we would like to keep their records on this system to show the interaction with any previous complaints. Any users still on the system will have been removed from ICT 'active directory' and so it is impossible for them to access the system. 	 a.) Officer level – Can create new tickets only and amend open tickets b.) Managers level – Can re-open tickets once closed, but cannot delete a ticket. c.) Administrators – Can delete tickets if required and set the parameter levels on tickets.

Ref./	Recommendation	Management Response and Action Plan	1 st Follow up
Priority			Position as at 16 th October 2020
3 Medium	 Compliments and Complaints Reporting Once the integrity of the data within the system has been assured to consider introducing quarterly reports to senior management in order to provide a strategic overview of how the Councils are performing and help to identify areas of risk though non delivery or poor service. To report on service areas to help them improve and to allow services to analyse trends within complaints. To consider the use of reporting compliments through staff newsletters/corporate events in order to celebrate success and help to boost morale throughout the Councils. 	Responsible Manager: Assistant Customer Support Manager Implementation date: 1 st Dec 2019** There are no plans to report to service managers as the management are the users of the system and can therefore check their own service area reports. Quarterly reports can be provided to CMT and SMT if required. It is planned to publish complaint data on a monthly basis on the web, including services whose complaints are over 21 days old. This was delayed due to the roll out of the corporate customer care strategy. **Subject to CMT approval, we will suggest a date of 1 st December 2019.	Not Implemented On reflection Management decided that if the service was to publish the complaint data on a monthly basis on the web, it may lead to reputational damage to the authority. Therefore, on review the Assistant Customer Support Manager has been in discussions with the Section 151 Officer to gain approval for the report to be submitted on a quarterly basis in a CMT platform. Due to the section 151 leaving and COVID-19, this has not yet been implemented, but assurance has been provided that this will be implemented by April 2021.
4 Medium	GDPR To review the current system and allocate a responsible officer to introduce quarterly checks by the appointed officer to ensure that there is a control in place so any personal record that are found to be non- compliant with the retention cycle are disposed of within the correct year.	Responsible Manager: Assistant Customer Support ManagerImplementation date: December 2020The complaints system was introduced in 2014 and complaints will be held for 5 years following closure. There are currently no records overdue for deletion, and the first record will be deleted in December 2020.	Full Implementation date not yet reached The actual document retention is not on a 5 year cycle, but rather a 7 year cycle. Therefore as the data has not yet reached 7 years, the implementation date would have been December 2022. Decisions have not been made as to if the document retention will be possible to achieved on an

Ref./ Priority	Recommendation	Management Response and Action Plan	<u>1st Follow up</u> Position as at 16 th October 2020
		Previous meetings with ICT had stated the system will remove records on an annual basis following 2020 however a check will need to be made to ensure this happens. Added to ICT development list.	automated approach or if a manual approach would be required. As the implementation will not be until 2022, the risk of the retention element has been accepted by the service,.

Appendix 5

Quality Assurance Improvement Plan.

Action Number	Area for Action and Standards Reference	Outcome Required	Action	Lead person	Target Date for completion	Date of Completion	Latest Position
1	1000	00 Updated Charter To review and update as Head of Internal Sep-21 and Partner appropriate, and present Audit & Team (Annual approval. COG and Partner Leader Reports)		To commence	December 2020: To be prepared for the July/Sept 2021 Cttee cycle.		
2	1210.A1 - Training Requirements	Professional qualifications to be obtained.	Auditors to enhance their skills and qualifications through professional study e.g. IIA	Auditors	2023/24	Ongoing	December 2020: An Auditor is seeking Membership to IIA.
3	2420 - Timely Completion of Review Stages	Improvement in issuing the 'Draft Report' to the agreed date as set out in the Brief. To make improvements in the monitoring of the management response after the issue of a Draft Report.	Monitor the issue of Draft Reports and the receipt of management response during the financial year taking appropriate and timely action where the target dates are stressed.	Auditors	Mar-21	Ongoing	December 2020: Being monitored
4	2500.A1 - Follow Up	More efficient and timely follow up in regards to reported management action plans.	To review and enhance the follow up process, and monitor progress to reduce potential slippage.	Audit Team Leader	Mar-21	Ongoing	December 2020: Being monitored and discussed as 1:2:1s
5	2010.A1 - Annual Risk Assessments	More effective implementation of Annual Risk Assessments into the annual planning	To review the current process of using the annual risk assessments and how inclusion into annual planning and audit	Head of Internal Audit / Audit Team Leader	Nov-20	Complete 30 th November 2020	All office risk assessments have been reviewed. Risk assessments have been drafted for COVID

and use within	planning can be improved.		associated office risks
individual audits.			when visiting Partner
			offices.
			Home risk assessments
			have been completed.
			Actions identified have
			been completed.

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 10

AUDIT, STANDARDS & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

WORK PROGRAMME 2020/21

21 January 2021

- Standards Regime Monitoring Officers' Report
- Statement of Accounts 2019/2020
- Audit Findings 2019/2020 Grant Thornton
- Internal Audit Monitoring Report
- Benefits and Compliance Update
- Risk Register Update
- Risk Champion Verbal Update Report (Councillor K. Van Der Plank)
- Audit, Standards and Governance Committee Work Programme

11 March 2021

- Audit, Standards and Governance Committee Annual Report
- External Audit Progress Report and Sector Update
- Internal Audit Progress Report
- Internal Audit Audit Plan 2020/2021
- Treasury Report Update (6 monthly)
- Risk Register Update
- Risk Champion Verbal Update Report (Councillor K. Van Der Plank)
- Audit, Standards and Governance Committee Work Programme

July 2021

- Election of Chairman
- Election of Vice Chairman
- Standards Regime Monitoring Officer's Report
- Grant Thornton Annual Audit Letter
- Internal Audit Annual Report
- External Assessment Progress Report
- Dispensations Report
- Financial Savings Monitoring Report for January to March 2021
- RIPA Report
- Annual Appointment of Risk Management Champion for the Committee
- Audit, Standards and Governance Committee Work Programme

This page is intentionally left blank